The Commons of Burghclere

There are two areas of Common land in Burghclere. These are Burghclere Common
and Earlstone Common. The former lies to the East of Well Street, immediately to
the North of the Herbert Plantation Local Nature Reserve. Earlstone Common
straddles the Aldern Bridge Road to the North of the Clere School.
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Northern Burghclere showing the location of the two Commons.
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Burghclere Common is a roughly rectangular parcel, amounting to 5.34 hectares

(13.2 acres), while Earlstone Common is a more irregular, almost spearhead, shape,

of some 9.31 hectares (23 acres). Bothsitonso-c al | ed O tedrsrbacaendgraave, i n
effect, an extension of the Greenham Common gravel plateau 2 miles to the north, in

Berkshire. Together with Newtown Common, in the adjacent eponymously named

parish, these Commons form a valuable heathland resource at the western end of

the Thames Basin.

Burghclere Common is registered in the ownership of Burghclere Parish Council as a

6Village Greend since there ar.edoweeerldel@@ mmon Ri g
a Village Green, it has free rights of public access, although it isn tGegistered as

0Access Landd under the Countryside and Rights



Footpath follows the southern boundary from op
turning southwards into the Herbert Plantation. There are other paths on Burghclere

Common, in particular a oO6circular routed follo
area, but none of these are designated public rights of way.

Earlstone Common is also registered as a Village Green but its ownership is

somewhat complicated. In the Common Registration, the owner is shown as d@’he

Public Trusteebbecausei The | and i s held for the wuse of th
Burghclered by deed of conveyance daared 17 Dec
placed on the Trustees, several of whom are elected from the landowners of

specified properties bordering onto the Common, together with representatives of the

Parish Council, National Trust and the Earl of Carnarvon (as Lord of the Manor).

These seven conditions can be summarised as:

1) To maintain the Common as an open space*

2) Not to encourage forestry on the Common

3) To regulate the cutting of turf or vegetation

4) Not to designate formal footpaths

5) Not to allow buildings to be erected

6) To allow gravel digging provided it does not spoil the appearance of the
Common

7 To make rules regulating the use of the Common.

* the indenture actually s a y Bhey&hall preserve and maintain the said land as an
open space of the character of a Common and as far as possible in the condition in
which it is now with regard to the plant and animal life upon itd .This was written in
1904, ten years after the publication of the 1894 Ordnance Survey map which shows
almost the whole of the Common as open and unwooded.
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Common. Itis assumed that all of these tracks existed at the time of the
Conveyance, indeed, they are all shown on the 1901 Ordnance Survey map of the
area. Since this Common is also not registered under the CRoW Act and since the

conveyance s ay sforihd use optheinpabitares of Bsrghilleredo , o ne
mi ght assume that it is only O6inhabitants of B
across the Common! As with Burghclere Co mmo n there are no 06Commec

associated with Earlstone Common. Neither Common is subject to Bylaws.

The mix of heathland, deciduous woodland and unimproved meadows in the North of
the parish creates a landscape high in wildlife value and, taken with the contrastingly
species-rich chalk grasslands in the south of the parish of Burghclere, forms an
exceedingly diverse and valuable wildlife resource.
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Bilberry is quite widespread on The Nationally Scarce dwarf gorse is found

Earlstone Common but absent from on both Commons as is its larger cousin

Burghclere Common common gorse
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Wonderfully camouflaged, both nightjars (left) and woodcock (right) nest on the
ground on nearby Newtown Common and have been known to use Burghclere
Common in recent years
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Both Commons lie on Pleistocene gravels associated with the River Kennet which

were laid down less than 3 million years ago. These gravels, which vary in depth,

overlie further gravels, sands and clays of the Bagshot Beds which were laid down

during the earlier Eocene period, some 39-70 million years ago. Both Commons

have been subject to small scale gravel extraction in the past. The Parish Council

minutes ¢c1900 refer to a 6Gravel Pits Committe
of the various pits in the parish. Gravel was primarily extracted for use in repairing

roads in the Parish.

The Commons of Burghclere were Enclosed in 1783 (Burghclere Inclosure Act, 21

Geo 3.c.4) by which the land was allotted to the Lord of the Manor and to the minister

and church wardens oftheparis h wh o wer e t hegeleobothereiseab!| ed t o 0
dispose of the allotment and to apply the sums or produce arising therefrom to the

benefit and advantage of the poor in aid of the poor rateé 0 .

In 1877, two allotments of common land, some 75 acres, were offered for sale. This
caused considerable upset at the time, with questions being asked in the House of
Commons as to the propriety of the sale. There was a compromise solution finally by
which half of the land would be sold, the other half becoming allotments. However, it
was subsequently reported that the scheme had been abandoned (Report of the
Commons, Footpaths and Open Spaces Society, 1878). Despite this, the Victoria
County History of the same year states that 70 acres of the Poor& Allotment had
been sold and that the Trust funds were then represented by £2163 3s 6d Consols,
producing £90 11s yearly which, under a scheme dated 10 March 1874, was
applicable in the distribution of coal, clothing, blankets and gifts of money in special
cases. The Parish Council minute books (1894 onwards) show the accounts of the
Poor®& Allotment Charity together with lists of the beneficiaries.

The question of sale of part of the Common arose again in 1903 but on this occasion,

despite some opposition, it was finally agreed to sell part of Earlstone Common to

Mr W G Arkwright (a descendant of the Arkwrigh
which had revolutionised cloth production). The arrangement was such that he

bought the whole of Earlstone Common (138 acres) for £1,400 but subsequently

gave c25 acres back to the village to be held in Trust. This is the area which is

known today as Earlstone Common.

At the same time, a portion of Burghclere Common was sold and a number of houses
built onit. Thesearethehouses to the north of Yeomandés Lan
of Well Street. The houses off Adbury Holt were built later, during the 1960s.
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Burghclere Common in 1894

Burghclere Common in 1909

Over the years, both Commons have been subject to occasional accidental fires
which are probably all that has prevented their total conversion from heathland to
woodland.

In January 1987, a management plan for the two Commons was prepared by

Simon Melville at the request of Burghclere Parish Council and was the subject of a
public consultation at that time. The plan proposed that the open, heathland areas of
both Commons should be kept open and the area on Earlstone Common be
expanded to reflect more the open character of the land at the time of the Indenture.

Subsequently, work was carried out in the late 1980s and early 1990s on both
Commons, making use of volunteer labour, contractors (on Burghclere Common)
funded through the Hampshire Heathlands Project, pupils from the Clere School (on
Earlstone Common) and employees of a Job Creation Programme scheme managed
by the Nature Conservancy Council.

On Burghclere Common, some volunteer work continued in a minor way which has
retained the open character of its heath, although a severe outbreak of heather leaf
beetle (Lochmaea suturalis) killed off much of the ling heather during the 1990s.
Despite this, the Common now has a good mixture of open dry acid grassland
dominated by purple moor grass (Molinia) with scattered ling heather (Calluna
vulgaris) and some dwarf gorse (Ulex minor).
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